
U.S. Department of Labor     Employment and Training Administration
      200 Constitution Avenue, N.W. 
     Washington, D.C.  20210

The Honorable John Bel Edwards 
Governor of Louisiana 
P.O. Box 94004 
Baton Rouge, LA  70804-9004 

Dear Governor Edwards: 

Thank you for your waiver request submission to the U.S. Department of Labor (Department) 
regarding certain statutory and regulatory provisions of the Workforce Innovation and 
Opportunity Act (WIOA) and the accompanying plan to improve the statewide workforce 
development system (enclosed).  The waiver request was received on August 30, 2022.  This 
letter provides the Employment and Training Administration’s (ETA) official response to your 
request and memorializes that Louisiana will meet the outcomes and implement the measures 
identified in its plan to ensure accountability agreed to by Louisiana and ETA.  This action is 
taken under the Secretary’s authority to waive certain requirements of WIOA Title I, Subtitles A, 
B, and E, and Sections 8–10 of the Wagner-Peyser Act in WIOA Section 189(i). 

Requested Waiver:  Waiver of 20 CFR 681.550 to allow WIOA individual training accounts 
(ITAs) for in-school youth (ISY). 

ETA Response:  ETA approves, for Program Year (PY) 2022 and PY 2023, the State’s request 
to waive the requirement limiting ITAs to only out-of-school youth (OSY), ages 16–24.  In 
addition to these OSY, the State may use ITAs for ISY, ages 16–21.  ETA reviewed the State’s 
waiver request and plan and has determined that the requirements requested to be waived 
impede the ability of Louisiana to implement its plan to improve the workforce development 
system.  Approval of this waiver should not impede the State’s efforts to prioritize OSY, 
including outreach to the OSY population. 

The State must report its waiver outcomes and implementation of the approved waiver in the 
WIOA Annual Report.  ETA will use this information to assess continued waiver approval and 
to identify promising practices that may be adopted more widely.  ETA is available to provide  
technical assistance to you in support of your goals.  If you have questions, feel free to contact 
my office at (202) 693-2772.   

Sincerely,

Brent Parton
Acting Assistant Secretary
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Enclosure 

cc:   Ava Cates, Secretary, Louisiana Workforce Commission 
Andrea V. Morrison, Assistant Secretary, Louisiana Office of Workforce Development 

            Nicholas Lalpuis, Regional Administrator, ETA 
Eva Drinkwine, Federal Project Officer, ETA 













October 3, 2022

Nicholas Lalpuis, Regional Administrator
Office of Employment and Training Administration
United States Department of Labor
525 S. Griffin Street, Room 317
Dallas, Texas 75020

RE:  Request for waiver of requirement that only permits WIOA Individual Training
        Accounts (ITAs) for Out-of-School Youth (OSY) for Program Years (PY) 2022 
        and 2023

Dear Administrator Lalpuis,

Louisiana’s waiver request for PY 2020 and PY 2021 was approved on October 19, 2021 
waiving the requirement limiting ITAs to only OSY ages 16-24 and allowing the use of ITAs 
for In-School Youth (ISY), ages 16-21.  Louisiana submits the attached request to waive the 
same provision of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) for PY 2022 and 
PY 2023.  Please know the Louisiana Workforce Commission has worked closely with its 
Local Workforce Development Boards (LWDBs) to develop a comprehensive request that is 
both reasonable and responsive to barriers that LWDBs are facing during the COVID-19 
pandemic.  In addition, we believe this waiver complies with federal regulations.

Statewide implementation started in October 2021 with the approval of our PYs 2020 and 
2021 waiver.  We have seen a slight increase of ITAs for ISY during October 1, 2021 – June 
30, 2022.  Louisiana anticipates having a steady increase of enrollments over the next two 
program years with the approval of this waiver.  Opportunities for ISY will include the 
pursuit of career pathways in high-demand occupations, increase training and employment 
outcomes, and stimulate youth to make their own choices. As stated in our waiver request, 
the state anticipates a 20 – 25 percent increase in ISY enrollments yielding the following:

10 – 15 percent increase in ISY ITAs over the next two program years. 
At least 75 percent of our ISY enrolled in ITAs will earn an industry recognized 
credential and/or some other postsecondary credential; thus, increasing both 
credential attainment and measurable skills. 
The number of registered training providers serving youth on the Eligible Training 
Provider List (ETPL) will increase by at least 5 percent over the next two program 
years.



Our ISY will gain knowledge and resources on dual college enrollment, occupational skills 
training, and registered apprenticeship programs. With this waiver, Louisiana is looking to 
see an increase in ISY engagement in the education system. 

Should you have any questions or require additional information, please contact Andrea V. 
Morrison, Assistant Secretary, Office of Workforce Development at (225) 342-3483 or 
amorrison@lwc.la.gov.

Sincerely,

Ava Cates
Secretary

cc:  Renita Ward, Deputy Assistant Secretary
Sonya Williams, Deputy Assistant Secretary
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